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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the year / period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates 8 primary and 2 secondary academies in Leicestershire. Its academies had a roll
of 4,454 in the school census in October 2023 (includes St Peters C of E Primary, Market Bosworth roll).

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The
Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The charitable company operates as Embrace Multi Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a Member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law
would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which
they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance is included in the Risk Protection
Arrangement with the ESFA and details are provided in note 12.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Recruitment of Trustees is outlined in the Memorandum and Articles of Association. Members shall appoint up
to 11 Trustees. Each academy within the Trust has its own local governing body (LGB) that may include staff
and parent Trustees.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Trustee induction training alongside a menu of extensive specialised training is available through the local
network of schools that support all new Trustees. The Trust buys into the Local Authority Governor Support &
Development Service, who across the Board of Trustees offers further Trustee training. A skills matrix is kept to
identify areas of strength and weakness within the Board of Trustees

Organisational Structure
The Board of Members meet at least annually to appoint new member Trustees and to receive the annual
accounts.

The Board of Trustees meets at least 4 times each year and at each meeting they receive reports from the
following committees:

1. Finance and Audit Committee — which meets at least 3 times per year; and
2. Standards Committee — which meets at least 3 times per year.

The day-to-day management of the Trust is delegated to the Trust Leader who delegates the leadership of each
academy to the Headteacher. This group of staff meets fortnightly to discuss both strategic and day-to-day
responsibilities.

A scheme of delegation has been approved which provides a clear line of responsibilities at all levels.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Board of Trustees reviews the Trust Leader's pay on an annual basis and the Board approves any pay
review. A change in the scheme of delegation from September 2022 has meant that the Trust Leader is now
responsible for the reviews of the headteachers with trustees considering the recommendations and LGBs will
still be involved in those appraisals and recommendations. Each LGB (with the advice of the Trust Leader)
reviews and approves the pay for their Senior Leadership Team (less the Headteacher). Determinations
consider a range of factors including the nature of the post; the level of qualifications, skills and experience
required; market conditions; the wider school context; external activity; achievement against performance
targets.

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, where an
Academy Trust has more than 49 full time equivalent employees throughout any 7 months within the reporting
period, it must include information included in Schedule 2 of the Regulations.

Relevant Union Officials
Number of employees who were relevant union officials 6.
Full time equivalent employee number 5.47.

A small amount of school time and funds were spent during the year on trade union facility time. Time; 123.5 hrs
and cost: £4,722.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
Embrace Multi Academy Trust continues to work with the Diocese of Leicester to uphold the Christian ethos of
the Church of England academies within the Trust.

Engagement with Employees (including disabled persons)

Embrace Multi Academy Trust believes in equality of opportunity for all stakeholders. This also relates to the
appointment of new members of staff. All applications are judged in relation to a specific job description and
person specification with shortlisting and appointment dependent upon matching these requirements. Where
required, the Trust will make reasonable adjustments to the role to support a disabled employee or new
appointment. This same policy applies to training, career development and promotion.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims

The principal activities of the Trust, as set out in its articles of association and funding agreement with the
Secretary of State are to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and
developing academies which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which:

(i) shall include Church of England Academies ("Church Academies" and each a "Church Academy")
designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the principles, practices and tenets of the
Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to arranging for religious education and daily
acts of worship, and

(i) may include other academies whether with or without a designated religious character;

but in relation to each of the academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designate
Church of England.

Where an academy is designated as or recognised as a Church Academy, in relation to the ethos and religious
education provided at the Academy the Directors shall have regard to any advice and follow any directives
issued by the Diocesan Corporate Member.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The following information reviews the priorities held by Embrace Multi Academy Trust for the financial year 2023-
24.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Embrace Multi Academy Trust’s Mission:

The Trust exists to provide the best possible standards of education for all pupils within our schools. We achieve
this by ensuring that children learn through the provision of a high-quality curriculum and by developing our
pupils as individuals, so they are fully equipped for life.

Embrace Multi Academy Trust’s Vision:

Our vision is to develop our pupils as individuals through our core purpose, which is ‘Learning for Life’. We
achieve this by working together as an inclusive Trust across our Church of England and community schools, to
reflect the communities that they represent and serve. We believe it is important to value and protect these
elements of individuality and to celebrate the diversity of our schools, as we do with our pupils and members of
staff.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The Trust has continued to develop systems and processes that are appropriate for managing and developing

a sustainable MAT. These have included:

o Further development of the Central Team including the appointment of a Secondary Improvement Lead,
Governance Manager, Assistant HR Manager, Marketing Assistant and an updated structure of the Finance
Team;

e Strengthening of safeguarding processes which has included all schools across the trust completing an
external review and use of the trust wide safeguarding concerns system;

e Focus on phonics and early reading with primary schools receiving an external review;

¢ Implementation Trust-wide system for managing health & safety compliance and estates management.

e Integration and digital project ensuring all Trust schools share the same IT domain and use of platform,
supporting collaboration.

The key priority area for Embrace Multi Academy Trust for 2023-24 was development of school improvement
across the Trust. We have been able to develop our school improvement strategy this year enabling our schools
to receive reviews, visits and support as identified. A system for gathering evidence and quality assurance was
implemented through the development of the school improvement cycle.

We have been able to increase our capacity for school improvement through external review and strategic
improvement planning. Embrace has developed collaborative networks within our schools and ensured all senior
leaders have undertaken quality training and development.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance

Significant achievements have included:

o Development of primary improvement leader roles for curriculum and data and assessment for primary
schools within the trust.

Development of school improvement visits from a secondary school consultant.

Development and implementation of networks for curriculum and subject leaders including SENCo network.
School reviews for identified aspects of the curriculum including phonics and early reading/writing.

Professional development across subject leader network and whole trust moderation session for all primary
schools.

o Development of subject leader networks for English and Maths leaders across all schools; and
o Development of a well-being strategy as part of the development of a strong and sustainable workforce.

Development of trust policies and support across schools ensured consistency of approach and structures.
These have included:

o Well-being strategy and website for employees across the trust to access.

Policy development.

Reviews for effective staffing structures.

Whole trust well-being morning with keynote speaker; and

Coaching for head teachers and leaders as part of their development and to support wellbeing.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Key Performance Indicators

SCHOOL Date of Last Ofsted Ofsted Overall Effectiveness
Inspection Rating
Arneshy CE Primary School 19/09/2023 Requires Improvement
Brockington College 23/04/2024 Requires Improvement
Croft CE Primary School 26/09/2023 Requires Improvement
Huncote Primary School 15/03/2022 Good
Manorfield CE Primary 08/09/2023 Good
Rawlins 28/06/2022 Requires Improvement
Sherrier CE Primary 11/07/2023 Good
St.Peters CE Primary (Market Bosworth) 07/11/2023 Good
St.Peters CE Primary (Whetstone) 03/10/2023 Good
Swinford CE Primary 14/01/2020 Good

Our significant achievements across the trust include:

e Phonics results across the trust primary schools were in line or above the national standard;

o Ofthe seven primary schools, five achieved above national attainment in the expected standard at key stage
one in reading, writing and mathematics combined;

o Of the seven primary schools, six achieved above national attainment in the expected standard at key stage
two in reading, writing and mathematics combined; and

e KS4 Progress 8 score achieved was broadly in line with national.

Public Benefit
In setting our objective and planning out activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Reserves Policy
At 31 August 2024 the total funds comprised:

£000

Unrestricted 1,689
Restricted

Fixed asset funds 19,968

Pension reserve -

Other 549

22,206

There are a number of constraints placed upon academies in terms of financial management. One of these
constraints is the inability to borrow funds. This constraint represents a key risk to the academy in relation to
financial planning and monitoring, however, one of the ways the academy mitigates this risk is through the
effective management of reserves which provide alternative temporary funding streams should there be a delay
in grant receipts or a sudden unforeseen increase in expenditure.

A further key risk to academies is the uncertainty of inflationary increases in expenditure. This includes the costs
of supplies/services and staffing expenditure.

Trustees have agreed that an appropriate reserves balance would equate to a minimum of 5% of the DfE General
Annual Grant (GAG). In addition, Embrace schools are encouraged to set budgets with a 1% of GAG surplus to
accommodate any fluctuations in expenditure.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Reserves Policy (cont’d)
The surplus on the pension reserve relates to the non-teaching staff pension scheme where, unlike the Teachers’
Pension Scheme, separate assets are held to fund future liabilities as discussed in note 29.

Restricted funds are spent in accordance with the terms of the funding agreement. Unrestricted funds are for
use on the general purposes of the academy, at the discretion of the Trustees. The aim of the Trustees has
been to use this reserve to develop estates within schools.

Investment Policy

The Investment Policy ensures that the academy monitors cash flow on a regular basis and that surplus funds
are deposited to maximise interest, with a consideration to only invest in risk free and fixed short-term deposit
accounts, whilst limiting liability. Investments held at 31 August 2024 are as follows:

Account Invested Interest Earned

£°000 £000
Lloyds 32 Notice Account Closed 12
Insignis Fixed Term Deposits (8 June 2023) 3,310 119
Lloyds Current Account 204 0

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Embrace Multi Academy Trust undertakes risk assessment through the Board of Trustees. Any major risks
highlighted are brought to the main Board with proposed mitigating actions and they continue to be reported until
the risk is adequately mitigated.

The Board of Trustees accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operations but maintains an objective
not to run unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of the process requires major risks to
be resolved by the Board of Trustees collectively, whilst more minor risks are dealt with by senior executive
officers.

The current top risks are around the following items:

¢ Staff do not have sufficient time to fully implement all necessary processes for an efficient organisation;
¢ Individual academies with financial deficit; and

¢ Risk of financial loss due to changes in funding and impact of external political factors on this.

Each academy in the Trust has an insurance policy to mitigate the risk of the Local Government Pension Scheme
deficit, which the Trust currently holds within its accounts and all of the academies within the Trust insure against
staff long term absence.

FUNDRAISING

Embrace Multi Academy Trust actively supports both national and local charities. Staff and students are involved
in raising funds by organising events such as non-uniform days. All contributions are given on a purely voluntary
basis with no minimum amount being set or expected. As a Multi Academy Trust we do not use professional
fundraisers or any commercial participators to fundraise on our behalf. During the year we received no
fundraising complaints with the public receiving no unreasonably intrusive fundraising approaches or undue
pressure to donate.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
Key strategic objectives for Embrace Multi Academy Trust:

Embrace has seven key objectives that all stakeholders wish to pursue by August 2024 and beyond. These are
essential for the Trust to prosper as a Multi Academy Trust:

to safeguard the distinctive ethos and character of each academy and its unique content;

to work together and with those outside Embrace for the benefit of all;

to be committed to the continual improvement of pupil academic outcomes;

to develop thoughtful, caring and active citizens;

to prioritise support for the most vulnerable within our academies;

to grow and sustain a strong, skilled and effective workforce at all levels; and

to ensure financial sustainability to allow excellence and growth for Embrace.

NouoprwdhE
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
No funds are held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.

AUDITOR
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

o there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware
¢ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 17 December 2024 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

J Haggart
Trustee
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 8 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended  Out of a Possible

Russell Andrews
Lucy Carlisle
Denise Chadwick
Philip Gowland
John Haggart
Mike Lilley
Sharon Mullins
Steve Piggot
Mark Poultney
Kirstie Randle
Evan Roberts
Ben Straw

AT POIFRPOOOWOORER, WNN
CO N U100 U100 U100~ 000 0

Three new Trustees joined the Board of Trustees in March 2024.

One Trustee left the Board of Trustees in November 2023, and another left in June 2024.

Four existing Trustees were reappointed by the Trust Members for another term of office in April 2023.

The Board of Trustees carried out a self-assessment during the summer term 2024 to review its effectiveness
and impact and to identify areas for improvement and development.

Attendance during the year at the meetings of the Finance and Audit Committee was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended  Out of a Possible
Russell Andrews 2 5
Denise Chadwick 3 5
Philip Gowland - 4
John Haggart 3 3
Mike Lilley 2 2
Sharon Mullins 5 5
Ben Straw 1 5

The Finance and Audit Committee is a committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is as follows:

1. Finance

a)

b)
c)
d)

e)

f)

9)

to review the Trust’'s proposed annual consolidated budget to ensure that it has been prepared in
accordance with Embrace policies and guidance and that it presents a balanced position for the coming
year, taking into account the confirmed level of funding and agreed priorities of Embrace.

to recommend the consolidated budget for approval by the Trust Board, drawing to their attention any
matters of concern or significance.

to review the financial implications placed upon the budget and the consistency of application across the
Trust of the Trust’s pay policy and performance management policy.

to review and approve the consolidated 3-year financial projections for the Trust then recommend to the
Trust Board, drawing to their attention any matters of concern or significance.

to approve a reserves policy for recommendation to the Trust Board.

to receive and consider consolidated budget monitoring accounts at each meeting and to review the
appropriateness of any proposed adaptive action.

the chair of the committee will receive and consider consolidated budget monitoring accounts monthly
and will review the appropriateness of any proposed adaptive action.



EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 11

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

1.

Finance (cont’d)

h) to monitor and review the Embrace strategic plan, advising on the financial implications of any proposed
developments. To regularly review the finance section of the Embrace strategic plan; and

i) to receive a summary of any debts that are recommended to be written-off and thereby ensure
compliance with prevailing Embrace, ESFA and DfE regulations.

Audit

a) to appoint an internal audit service for the Trust and agree the scope of its work;

b) to receive copies of individual academy internal audit reports, as requested. To provide assurance on
each individual academy’s adherence to Trust wide financial policies, procedures and regulations, and
to ensure that adequate financial controls are in place and operating satisfactorily. The committee should
only review specific actions where high priority recommendations have been made;

c) toreview and approve the Trust’s consolidated annual accounts prior to submission;

d) to consider the recommendations made by the external auditor in their management letter following the
audit of the Trust’s annual statutory accounts and to advise the Board on any action needed;

e) torecommend to the members the appointment or reappointment of the external auditors of the Trust;

f) to review annually the register of business interests for all Trustee and executive Embrace employees
and to take appropriate action should issues be apparent; and

g) to annually review and approve the Trust’s financial Scheme of Delegation and appropriate financial
procedures.

Risk

The committee has oversight of the Trust’'s implementation of appropriate risk management and internal
control systems, thus enabling the Board to make a robust assessment of the principal risks. Specifically,
the committee will:

e monitor and review the risk management and internal control systems and its process of monitoring
and reviewing, to ensure they are functioning effectively, and that corrective action is being taken
where necessary; and

¢ monitor and review termly the Embrace risk register and escalate key risks to the Trust Board for the
Board to agree a programme of work to address and provide assurance on those risks.

Relevant Policies
To approve policies as determined by the Trust Board through a Trust policy framework.

General
To consider other areas, as determined by the Trust Board from time to time.

Review
The committee will self-assess its performance against these terms of reference on an annual basis and will
also review the terms of reference, submitting any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Trust Leader has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the

educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY (cont’d)
The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

The use of ICFP metrics has been a key tool used to review, plan and optimise the use of school budgets.

° As Embrace MAT has grown in size, we have used centralised procurement to ensure that the purchasing
power held can be used to obtain the very best value.

. Staffing delivery models have been reviewed in line with changing pupil numbers to ensure we maintain
contact ratios.

° Lower prices have been obtained by increasing the length of contracts, where appropriate.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place at Embrace Multi Academy Trust
for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. It includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees.

. regular reviews by the finance and audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes.

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance.
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

. identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Duncan & Topliss as internal auditor.

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust’s financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

Internal Audit coverage, review of:

° budget and financial monitoring
governance.

payroll.

strategic and operational.
expenditure.

On an annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Finance & Audit Committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustee’s financial
responsibilities.

During Spring Term 2024 an enhanced internal financial audit was conducted of all the schools within the Trust.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer, the Trust Leader has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

) the work of the internal auditor;
the work of the staff within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework; and

. the work of the external auditor.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the result of their review of the system of internal control.

The Finance and Audit Committee have been presented with a plan to address any weaknesses identified and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

CONCLUSION

Based on the advice of the Finance and Audit Committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of
the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management
and control

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 17 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

J Haggart S Mullins
Trustee Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST
2024

As Accounting Officer of Embrace Multi Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Board of Trustees and the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, including for estates safety and management,
under the funding agreement, between the academy trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
responsibility for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the academy trust’s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023 including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that no instances of material irregular, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

S Mullins
Accounting Officer
17 December 2024
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees, who are also the Directors of the Charitable Trust for the purposes of company law, are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Direction issued by the Education Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024;
make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Charitable Trust will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied
for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Charitable Trust’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 17 December 2024 and signed on its behalf
by:

J Haggart
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Embrace Multi Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August
2024 which comprise Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows
and notes to the financial statement, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e (give a true and fair view of the state of the Embrace Multi Academy Trusts affairs as at 31 August 2024
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Embrace Multi Academy Trusts
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information
contained within the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

e the information given in the Trustees' report (incorporating the Strategic Report, and the Trustees Report)
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

e the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in

the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report. We have

nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 15, the Trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Embrace Multi
Academy Trusts ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:

Based on our understanding of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust and the industry in which it operates, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the acts by the
Embrace Multi Academy Trust, which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to inflated revenue and the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’s net income for the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation, review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, including correspondence with
the Education and Skills Funding Agency review of correspondence with legal advisors, enquiries of
management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements, and
testing of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Trustees that represented a risk
of material misstatement due to fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the academy trust’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’'s members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’'s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’s and
the Embrace Multi Academy Trust’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Malcolm Winston

Senior Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, Statutory Auditor
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

17 December 2024
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO EMBRACE
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 June 2024 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether, the expenditure
disbursed and income received by the Embrace Multi Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2023 to
31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the Embrace Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with our
engagement letter. Our review has been undertaken so that we might state to the governing body and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Embrace Multi
Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Embrace Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Embrace Multi Academy Trusts funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 July 2013, and the Academy Trust Handbook
extant from 1 September 2023 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for
the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies: Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether, anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountants issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in
our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the multi academy trust's income and expenditure.

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

* Analytical review of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust's general activities are within the multi academy
trusts framework of authorities;

* Consideration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO EMBRACE
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Approach (cont'd)

* Review of the general control environment for the Embrace Multi Academy Trust on financial statements
and on regularity;

* Sample testing of expenditure transactions to ensure the activity is permissible within the multi academy
trust's framework of authority;

* Confirmation that a sample of expenditure has been appropriately authorised in accordance with the multi
academy trust's delegated authorities;

* Formal representations obtained from the board of Trustees and the accounting officer acknowledging
the responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and regulations specific to the
authorising framework;

* Confirmation that any extra contractual payments such as severance and compensation payments have
been appropriately authorised;

* Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or Trustees;

* Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;

* Review of related party transactions for connections with the principal/finance manager or Trustees; and

* Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the multi academy trust's
charitable objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

17 December 2024
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

(Including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income from:
Donations and capital grants 3 55 35 766 856 1,959
Transfer of academy into the academy
trust 3&32 22 20 1,253 1,295 12,398
Charitable activities:
- Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 - 28,772 - 28,772 21,436
Other trading activities 5 644 - - 644 359
Investment income 6 131 - - 131 39
Total 852 28,827 2,019 31,698 36,191
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 137 - - 137 392
Charitable activities:
- Academy trust's educational operations 7 - 30,205 1,759 31,964 22,635
Total 137 30,205 1,759 32,101 23,027
Net income/(expenditure) 715 (1,378) 260 (403) 13,164
Transfers between funds 17 (966) 309 657 - -
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
schemes 29 - 1,297 - 1,297 2,418
Asset ceiling adjustment 29 - (1,599) - (1,599) (168)
Net movement in funds (251) (1,371) 917 (705) 15,414
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 17 1,940 1,920 19,051 22,911 7,497
Total funds carried forward 17 1,689 549 19,968 22,206 22,911

All of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust's activities derive from acquisitions and continuing operations during

the above two financial periods.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total Net Assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds

- Fixed asset fund

- Restricted income fund

- Pension reserve

Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted income fund
Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

Note

13

14

15

16

29

17
17
17

17

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
20,271 18,128
20,271 18,128
1,258 1,967
3,516 4,654
4,774 6,621
(2,554) (1,571)
2,220 5,050
22,491 23,178
(285) (267)
22,206 22,911
22,206 22,911
19,968 19,051
549 1,920
20,517 20,971
1,689 1,940
1,689 1,940
22,206 22,911

The financial statements on pages 22 to 50 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 17

December 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

J Haggart
Chair
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Notes 2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21 581 1,124
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (1,735) (991)
Cash flows from financing activities 23 16 194
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (1,138) 327
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 24 4,654 4,327

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 24 3,516 4,654
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Embrace Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Embrace Multi Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales.
The address of the registered office, principal place of operation and registered number are detailed on
page 1. The nature of the Academy Trust’s operations and principal activity are detailed in the Trustees’
Report.

The Financial Statements are prepared in British Pound Sterling (£), the functional and presentational
currency, rounded to the nearest £1,000.

Going Concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy
Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded
that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.

This consideration has taken into account as far as possible, the economic and political climate, and its
impact on the Academy Trust, as far as it can be determined, and the Trustees remain satisfied that the
going concern principle remains appropriate.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

e Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance
sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.

e Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable, where receipt is probable and it
can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)
e Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can
be reliably measured.

e Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

e Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’.
Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from other trading activities’.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's
accounting policies.

e Transfers of leasehold property
Leasehold property transferred to the Academy from the local authority at little or no consideration will
be revalued at fair value in accordance with FRS 102. This value will be recognised as incoming
resources in the Statement of Financial Activities and will be included in the appropriate fixed assets
category and depreciated over the life of the building.

e Investment Income
Interest receivable is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis, and is
stated inclusive of related tax credits.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each
activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in
undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset’s use.

e Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

e Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational , including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

e Governance Costs
These include the costs attributable to the academy trust's compliance with constitutional and
statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management and Governor's meetings and
reimbursed expenses.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in
the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.

Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. Depreciation is provided on a straight
line or reducing balance basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down to their estimated
residual values over their expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for assets are:

Long-term leasehold land 125 years straight-line per annum
Long-term leasehold property 2% straight-line per annum
Long-term leasehold property improvements 2% straight-line per annum
Furniture and fittings 20% straight-line per annum
Computer equipment and software 33.3% straight-line per annum

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of
fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Investments - not applicable unless trust has a subsidiary.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 15 and 16. Taxation and social security are not included
in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability,
as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowance for obsolete and
slower moving stock.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable Trust for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(“TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined
by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently
the TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a multi funded employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate Trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liabilities.

The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of
the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the governors. Restricted fixed asset funds
are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset
acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education Funding Agency.

License to occupy

The Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust, in agreement with the Board of Education of the Diocese
of Leicester, occupy certain buildings and some open land on a rent free licence. Full details of the
arrangement are detailed in note 13.

The Trustees have considered the guidance in the Academies Accounts Direction in relation to properties
occupied under licence. Having considered the arrangements under which the Academy Trust is
occupying certain land and buildings, for the reasons given in note 13, the Trustees have concluded that
the arrangement should not be included as an asset on the Balance Sheet and the Trustees have not
included any value of land or buildings in the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The critical judgements that the Governors have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory
financial statements are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of
assets through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability. Government grants are accounted
for as restricted funds. The pension liability is assessed by an independent actuarial valuation.
Deprecation rates are based on the expected life of the asset.

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of impairment assets, the Governors have
considered both external and internal sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty
credit ratings and experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of impairments identified
during the current financial year.

Any LGPS surpluses will only be recognised as an asset in the financial statements to the extent that the
academy trust can recover this surplus, either through a reduction in future contributions or through a
refund to the academy trust.
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2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the Embrace Multi Academy Trust was not
subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024 (see note 17).

3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Transfer of existing academies
Assets and liabilities transferred
LGPS pension transferred

Other capital grants

Donations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- 484 484 1,947

22 1,273 1,295 12,398

- 317 317 -

55 - 55 12

77 2,074 2,151 14,357

The income from donations and capital grants was £2,151,000 (2023: £14,357,000) of which £77,000
(2023: £Nil) was unrestricted, £55,000 (2023: £1,037,000)

£13,320,000) restricted fixed assets.

4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST’S CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) (note 2)
Post 16-19 core grant

Rates relief grant

Other DfE/ESFA grants

Universal infant free school meals grant
Trust capacity fund

PE and sports grant

Pupil premium grant

Teachers pay grant

Teachers pension grant
Supplementary grant

Mainstream additional schools arant
Other DfE/ESFA grants

National tutoring programme

Other Government grants
Special educational needs
Local authority grants

COVID-19 DfE/ESFA additional funding
Recovery Premium
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding

Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations:

Other

Pupil catering income

restricted and £2,019,000 (2023:

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 21,908 21,908 17,829

- 1,824 1,824 -

- 126 126 147

- 240 240 232

- - - 81

- 147 147 113

- 796 796 623

- 380 380 -

- 277 277 33

- - - 234

- 745 745 259

- 10 10 186

- 28 28 41

- 26,481 26,481 19,778

- 1,258 1,258 947

- 109 109 -

- 1,367 1,367 947

- 180 180 131

- 180 180 131

- 102 102 214

- 642 642 366

- 744 744 580

- 28,772 28,772 21,436

The income from the academy trusts's educational operations was restricted for both 2024 and 2023.
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5 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Hire of facilities 394 - 394 204

Other income 212 - 212 129

Catering Income 38 - 38 26

644 - 644 359

The income from the rest of the academy trusts' other trading activities was unrestricted for both 2024
and 2023.

6 INVESTMENT INCOME Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Bank interest received 131 - 131 39

131 - 131 39

The income from the academy trusts' investment activities was unrestricted for both 2024 and 2023.

7 EXPENDITURE | Non Pay Expenditure | Total Total
Staff Costs  Premises)ther Costs 2024 2023
Expenditure on raising funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- Direct costs - - - - -
- Allocated support costs 130 - 7 137 392
130 - 7 137 392

Academy’s educational operations
- Direct costs 19,919 - 1,766 21,685 15,293
- Allocated support costs 4,888 2,770 2,621 10,279 7,342
24,807 2,770 4,387 31,964 22,635
24,937 2,770 4,394 32,101 23,027

The expenditure was £32,101,000 (2023: £23,027,000) of which £137,000 (2023: £392,000) was
unrestricted, £30,205,000 (2023: £21,917,000) restricted and £1,759,000 (2023: £718,000) restricted

fixed assets.

2024 2023
Net (income)/expenditure for the year includes: £'000 £'000
Operating leases rentals 94 71
Depreciation 980 718
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 779 -
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit 33 39
- other services 5 6
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8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES Total Total
2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Direct costs - educational operations 21,685 15,293
Support costs - educational operations 10,279 7,342
31,964 22,635

Total Total

2024 2023

Analysis of Support Costs £'000 £'000
Support staff costs 4,888 4,148
Depreciation 980 718
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 779 -
Premises costs 1,790 1,145
Legal costs - conversion 6 -
Legal costs - other 30 35
Other support costs 1,141 973
Governance costs 280 66
10,279 7,342

9 STAFF COSTS Total Total
a Staff costs and employee benefits 2024 2023
Staff costs during the year were: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 18,049 13,155
Social security costs 1,696 1,221
Pension costs 4,147 3,334

Other employee benefits

23,892 17,710

Agency staff costs 972 810
Staff restructuring costs 73 17

24,937 18,537

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments 55 17
Severance payments 5 -
Other restructuring costs 13 -

73 17

b Staff severance contractual and non contractual payments

The academy trust paid severance payments in the year of £72,998 (2023: £17,000) disclosed in the
following bands:

2024 2023
0 - £25,000 8 1
£25,001 - £50,000 1 -

c Special staff severance non contractual payments

Included in staff restructuring costs there is 4 non statutory/non contractual special severance payments
of £13,255 (2023: £nil). Induividually the payments were £471, £1,946, £8,102 and £2,736.
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9 STAFF COSTS (cont'd)

d Staff numbers
The average number of persons (including School Leadership Team) employed by the Academy during
the year ended 31 August 2024 expressed as whole persons was as follows:

2024 2023

Charitable Activities No No
Teachers 289 233
Administration and support - including Teaching Assistants 375 353
Management 40 26
704 612

e Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

No No
£60,001 - £70,000 17 6
£70,001 - £80,000 5 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1 3
£90,001 - £100,000 1 -
£100,001 - £110,000 - 2

£110,001 - £120,000 2 -

f Key management personnel
The key management of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the Senior Leadership Team as
listed on page 3. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Academy Trust was £780,137 (2023: £465,237).
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10

11

12

CENTRAL SERVICES
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

- provision of CEO & CFO services;

- schools improvement;

- financial support, audit and external accountancy services;

- estates and compliance;

- ICT support;

- human resource; and

- governance.

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

The method used for the contribution of the individual academies to central services was a charge of 5%
of ESFA GAG income, and associated GAG supplementary grants.

2024 2023

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: £'000 £'000
Arnesby CE Primary School 23 21
Brockington College 365 345
Croft CE Primary School 36 32
Huncote Primary School 45 43
Manorfield CE Primary 94 91
Rawlins Academy 503 236
Sherrier CE Primary 96 89
St. Peters CE Primary - Whetstone 57 46
Swinford CE Primary 29 30
St. Peters CE Primary - Market Bosworth 19 -
1,267 933

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES’ REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

The Accounting Officer has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with
Embrace Multi Academy Trust. The Accounting Officer only receives remuneration in respect of services
provided undertaking the roles of Accounting Officer under their contract of employment. The value of
CEO remuneration and other remuneration was as follows:

2024 2023
S Mullins (Accounting Officer)
Remuneration £115,000 - £120,000 £105,000 - £110,000
Employers pension £25,000 - £30,000 £20,000 - £25,000

During the year ended 31 August 2024, there were no expenses reimbursed to the headteacher
undertaking their role as accounting officer (2023: None).

Other related party transactions including Trustees are set out in note 30.

TRUSTEES’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees' and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. It is not possible
to quantify the Trustees and Officers indemnity from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Leasehold Leasehold

Land & Improve-  Furniture & Computer Motor

Buildings ments Equipment Equipment  Vehicles Total
Cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2023 14,971 4,038 432 589 41 20,071
Additions - 2,517 14 99 37 2,667
Transfer in 463 761 2 9 - 1,235
Disposals (779) - - - (3) (782)
At 31 August 2024 14,655 7,316 448 697 75 23,191
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 500 820 213 406 4 1,943
Charged in year 297 504 63 110 6 980
Disposal - - - - (3) (3)
At 31 August 2024 797 1,324 276 516 7 2,920
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 13,858 5,992 172 181 68 20,271
At 31 August 2023 14,471 3,218 219 183 37 18,128

The Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust, in agreement with the Board of Education of the Diocese
of Leicester, occupy the buildings and some open land of the Academy Trust on a rent free licence. This
continuing permission of the Board of Education is pursuant to, and subject to, the Board’s charitable
objects. The licence delegates aspects of the management of the land (and buildings) to the Academy
Trust for the time being, but does not vest any rights over the land in the Academy Trust. The terms of
this licence have been agreed between the Secretary of State and the Trustees of Embrace Multi
Academy Trust and contain a termination clause on the Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust by the
Board of Education giving two years notice. The Academy Trust is responsible for the maintenance and
insurance of the land and buildings.

The value of the donated facility cannot be reliably quantified and measured and accordingly no
accounting adjustment has been made for this matter.
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2024 2023
14 DEBTORS £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 22 11
VAT recoverable 233 204
Prepayments and accrued income 1,000 1,752
Other debtors 3 -
1,258 1,967
15 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Other creditors 79 -
Salix loans 4 9
CIF loans 12 9
Taxation & social security 927 -
Accruals 574 1,090
Deferred income 956 463
2,554 1,571

Deferred Income
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 463 270
Resources deferred in the year 956 463
Amounts recognised as income during the year (463) (270)
Deferred income at 31 August 2024 956 463

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for trip income
£297,393 (2023: £232,069), National Tutoring Program £23,760 (2023: £37,356), Universal Infant Free
School Meals £149,324 (2023: £142,173), School Conditional Allowance £453,527 (2023: £Nil) school
clubs £24,346 (2023: ££8,927) and other income £7,482 (2023:£Nil)

Included within loans falling due within one year are 5 loans amounting to £16,243 (2023:18,008) from
the Education and Skills Funding Agency under the Capital Improvement Fund and from Salix Finance
as follows:

Salix Finance loan for LED lighting upgrade of £3,162 (2023: £3,162), which is repayable in instalments,
no interest is charged.

Salix Finance loan for heating system replacement of £1,069 (2022: £1,069), which is repayable in
instalments, no interest is charged.

ESFA CIF loan for roofing repairs of £8,777 (2023: £8,777), which is repayable in instalments, no interest
is charged.

Salix Finance loan of ENIL (2023: £5,000), which is repayable in instalments, no interest is charged. The
loan was transferred from Rawlins Academy on 1 March 2023.

ESFA CIF loan for fire precautions of £3,235 (2023 : £Nil), which is repayable in instalments, interest is
charged at 1.92%.
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16 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN GREATER THAN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Salix loans 8 10
CIF Loans 277 257
285 267

Included within loans falling due in greater than one year are 5 loans amounting to £286,403 (2023:
£266,837) from the Education and Skills Funding Agency under the Capital Improvement Fund and from
Salix Finance as follows:

Salix Finance loan for LED lighting upgrade of £4,743 (2023: £1,581), which is repayable in instalments,
no interest is charged.

Salix Finance loan for heating system replacement of £4,810 (2023: £5,879), which is repayable in
instalments, no interest is charged.

ESFA CIF loan for roofing repairs of £43,885 (2023: £52,662), which is repayable in instalments, interest
is charged.

ESFA CIF loan for roofing repairs of £203,850 (2023: £203,850), which is repayable in instalments,
interest is charged.

Salix Finance loan of £Nil (2023: £2,865), which is repayable in instalments, no interest is charged. The
loan was transferred from Rawlins Academy on 1 March 2023.

ESFA CIF loan for fire precautions of £29,115 (2023 : £Nil), which is repayable in instalments, interest is
charged at 1.92%.
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17 FUNDS
The income funds of the academy applied for specific purposes are as follows:
Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2023 Transfers 2024
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (i) 1,920 21,928  (23,608) 309 549
Post 16-19 core grant (iii) - 1,824 (1,824) - -
Rates relief grant (iii) - 126 (126) - -
Pupil premium grant (ii) - 796 (796) - -
PE and Sports grant (iii) - 147 (247) - -
UIFSM grant (iii) - 240 (240) - -
Teachers pay grant (iii) - 380 (380) - -
Teachers pension grant (iii) - 277 (277) - -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding (iii) - 208 (208) - -
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant (iii) - 746 (746) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants (iii) - 13 (13) - -
LA special educational needs grant (iv) - 1,258 (1,258) - -
LA pupil premium grant (iv) - 33 (33) - -
LA Early Years grant (iv) - 62 (62) - -
LA other grants (iv) - 14 (14) - -
SCA revenue (iii) - 35 (35) - -
Pupil catering & trips (v) - 740 (740) - -
Total general funds 1,920 28,827 _ (30,507) 309 549
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants (note vii) 1,419 449 (131) 2 1,739
Fixed assets donation - (note vii) 16,086 1,253 (1,395) (15) 15,929
Capital expenditure from GAG (vii) 1,240 - (193) 670 1,717
Other Capital Grants (vii) 306 317 (40) - 583
Total fixed asset funds 19,051 2,019 (1,759) 657 19,968
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note ix) - - 302 (302) -
- - 302 (302) -
Total restricted funds 20,971 30,846  (31,964) 664 20,517
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note x) 1,770 852 (137) (796) 1,689
Astro Turf Pitch 170 - - (170) -
Total unrestricted funds 1,940 852 (137) (966) 1,689

Total funds 22,911 31,698  (32,101) (302) 22,206
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17 FUNDS (Cont'd)

Notes
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

(i) General Annual Grant (GAG)

Funds from the Education and Skills Funding Agency for the provision of education, in line with the
funding agreement.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit
on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024. Transfers of £641,000 (2023:
£971,000) from unrestricted funds to the restricted fixed asset fund towards fixed assets. Transfers of
£16,000 (2023: £15,000) from restricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds represents allocations of
restricted funds towards the repayment of the Salix loans and CIF loans. Transfers of £309,000 (2023:
£299,000) transferred from unrestricted to restricted funds for overspend of GAG.

(ii) Pupil premium

Additional funds from the Education and Skills Funding Agency to support their disadvantaged pupils and
close the attainment gap between them and their peers. This is allocated for every pupil who receives
free school meals.

(iii) Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Other funds provided by the DfE/ESFA for particular purposes within the Academy Trust's educational
operations.

(iv) Other Government grants

These are funds and grants received from the Local Authority and other institutions for use on specific
educational projects.

(v) Other income

These consist of income from all other sources to be used primarily for the Academy Trust’s educational
operations.

(vi) Other donations

This consists of donations from all other sources to be used primarily for Academy Trust’'s educational
operations.

(vii) Restricted Fixed asset funds

The restricted fixed asset fund was funded predominately by the funds inherited on conversion to an
Academy Trust from Local Authority following the transfer of assets. It included further amounts invested
in leasehold property, furniture and fittings and computer equipment. Also included in the fund is
depreciation charged on fixed assets held.

(viii) Salix and CIF Loans

The Salix loans and CIF loan liability represents amounts which were received as part of the CIF funding
received for the purchase of tangible fixed assets. As repayments were made against the liabilities,
transfers will be made from restricted funds against Salix loans fund and the CIF loan fund. Transfers of
£20,000 (2023: £15,000) from restricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds represents allocations of
restricted funds towards the repayment of the Salix loans and CIF loans.

(ix) Pension reserve

Being the fund in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme liability included in the Balance Sheet.
The fund is currently in surplus, the surplus is not recognised in the accounts as this is not considered
recoverable.

(x) Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds are to be used towards meeting any of the charitable objectives of the Academy Trust
at the discretion of the Trustees. Transfers of £309,000 (2023: £299,000) transferred from unrestricted to
restricted funds for overspend of GAG.
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17 FUNDS (Cont'd)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2022 Transfers 2023
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (i) 1,528 17,829  (18,227) 790 1,920
Rates relief grant (ii) - - - - -
Pupil premium grant (jii) - 623 (623) - -
PE and Sports grant (iv) - - - - -
UIFSM grant (v) - 232 (232) - -
Teachers pay grant (vi) - - - - -
Teachers pension grant (vii) - 33 (33) - -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding (Vviii) - 131 (131) - -
Supplementary Grant - 494 (494) - -
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant - - - - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants (ix) - 386 (386) - -
LA special educational needs grant (x) - 936 (936) - -
LA pupil premium grant (xi) - 11 (11) - -
Pupil catering & trips (xii) - - - - -
Trust Capacity Funding - 81 (81) - -
Donations - 12 (12) - -
Transferred on Conversion - 1,025 - (1,025) -
Other - 430 (430) - -
Total Restricted general funds 1,528 22,223  (21,596) (235) 1,920
Restricted fixed asset funds
Net Book Value of fixed Assets 5,549 - (718) 13,297 18,128
Capital Grants (DFC) - 101 - (100) 1
Capital Grants (CIF) - 1,283 - (144) 1,139
Capital Grants (Additional Energy Funding) - 147 - (135) 12
Capital Grants (Section 106) - 416 - (360) 56
Donation on Academy joining trust - 11,373 - (11,373) -
Salix Loans (16) - - 4) (20)
CIF Loan (70) - - (195) (265)
Total fixed asset funds 5,463 13,320 (718) 986 19,051
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note viii) (1,477) - (321) 1,798 -
(1,477) - (321) 1,798 -
Total restricted funds 5,514 35,543 (22,635) 2,549 20,971
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note ix) 1,823 648 (392) (309) 1,770
Astro Turf Pitch 160 - - 10 170
Total unrestricted funds 1,983 648 (392) (299) 1,940

Total funds 7,497 36,191  (23,027) 2,250 22,911
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17 TOTAL FUND ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY 2024 2023
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows: £'000 £'000
Arnesby CE Primary School (33) -
Brockington College 610 1,525
Croft CE Primary School 19 38
Huncote Primary School 141 133
Manorfield CE Primary 317 302
Rawlins Academy 858 1,535
Sherrier CE Primary 245 280
St. Peters CE Primary - Whetstone 35 66
Swinford CE Primary 21 50
St. Peters CE Primary - Market Bosworth 11 -
Embrace Multi Academy Trust 14 (69)
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2,238 3,860
Restricted fixed assets fund 19,968 19,051
Pension reserve - -
Total 22,206 22,911

Embrace Multi Academy Trust central budget in 2023 was used to provide additional funding for capital
projects to St Peter's Chruch of England Primary School £85,000 and Amesby Church of England
Primary School £15,000 with the loans being repaid by way of additional contributions over the next 10
years (10% per year repayable).

Arnesby CE Primary School £33,000 deficit (2023: £Nil) - A 3-stage plan has been developed to attract
additional funding in future years through; a) Marketing campaign to fill pupil places b) Applying for
exceptional circumstances LA funding; c) Applying for falling roll funding. The school has reduced costs
to minimise planned budget deficits, both from staffing and from non-staffing budgets. We anticipate an
increase in pupil numbers and therefore increased funding for school in future years, the school aims to
plan future budget surpluses to recover from a negative reserve position.

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other Other
Educational Support Costs
Support Staff Staff Educational (excluding Total

Costs Costs Supplies  Deprec'n) 2024 Total 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Arnesby CE Primary School 356 28 40 61 485 553
Brockington College 5,278 1,608 453 1,066 8,405 7,498
Croft CE Primary School 630 146 76 97 949 932
Huncote Primary School 730 93 43 141 1,007 1,019
Manorfield CE Primary 1,549 152 82 243 2,026 1,991
Rawlins Academy 8,354 1,672 773 1,216 12,015 5,473
Sherrier CE Primary 1,448 235 101 277 2,061 1,960
St. Peters CE Whetstone 738 213 86 135 1,172 1,072
Swinford CE Primary 461 44 61 109 675 632
St. Peters CE M'kt Bosworth 349 53 33 66 501 -
MAT 26 774 18 228 1,046 1,105

Total 19,919 5,018 1,766 3,639 30,342 22,235
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18 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Fixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 20,271 20,271
Current assets 1,689 - 3,085 - 4774
Current liabilities - - (2,538) (16) (2,554)
Non current liabilities - - 2 (287) (285)
Pension scheme
liability - - - - -
1,689 - 549 19,968 22,206
18 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Fixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 18,128 18,128
Current assets 1,940 - 3,473 1,208 6,621
Current liabilities - - (1,553) (18) (1,571)
Non current liabilities - - - (267) (267)
Pension scheme liability - - - - -
1,940 - 1,920 19,051 22,911
19 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 29 283

20 LONG TERM COMMITMENTS INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases
At 31 August 2024 the total of Alcester Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases was:

2024 2023

Other Other

£'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year 77 99
Amounts due between one and five years 9 71

86

170
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21 RECONCILIATION OF NET (DEFICIT)/INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

22

23

24

ACTIVITIES

Net (deficit)/income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation (note 13)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 29)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 29)

Decrease/Increase in stock
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Transfer in of land and buildings (note 13)
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of borrowing

Cash inflows from new borrowing

Net cash provided by financing activities
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
(403) 13,164

980 718
779 -

(801) (1,947)
(131) (39)
(282) 107

(20) 214

- 6

709 (88)
985 (204)
(1,235) (10,807)
581 1,124

2024 2023

£'000 £'000
131 39
(2,667) (1,806)
801 776
(1,735) (991)

2024 2023

£'000 £'000

(16) (10)

32 204

16 194

At 31 Aug At 31 Aug

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
3,516 4,654
3,516 4,654
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25

27

28

29

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT At 1 Sept Cash At 31 Aug
2023 Flows 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank 4,654 (1,138) 3,516
Overdraft - - -
4,654 (1,138) 3,516
Loans within one year (18) 2 (16)
Loans within more than one year (267) (18) (285)
4,369 (1,154) 3,215
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the funding agreement between the Embrace Multi Academy Trust and the
Secretary of State, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for which a
Government capital grant was received, the Embrace Multi Academy Trust is required either to reinvest
the proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of
the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Embrace
Multi Academy Trust serving notice, the Embrace Multi Academy Trust is obliged to repay to the
Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust's sites and premises and other assets
held for the purpose of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust; and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the funding agreement.

MEMBER LIABILITY

Each member of the Embrace Multi Academy Trust undertakes to contribute to it's assets in the event of
it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before
he/she ceases to be a member.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

Embrace Multi Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’
Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Leicestershire County Council
Pension Fund. Both are defined multi employer benefit schemes.

As described in note 1 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Embrace Multi Academy
Trust, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and
new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of
employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor
school and the Trust's at the balance sheet date.

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2024 was £4,147,000 (2023:
£3,334,000) of which £3,397,000 (2023: £1,852,000) relates to the TPS and £750,000 (2023:
£1,482,000) relates to LGPS.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £532,202 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023: £Nil) and
are included within other creditors.
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29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are

recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI.
The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

e Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

e Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £3,397,000 (2023: £1,852,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set
out above, the information available on the scheme.
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29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in a separate Trustee administered

funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,308,000 (2023:

£1,441,000) of which employers contributions totalled £1,052,000 (2023: £1,161,000) and employees

contributions totalled £256,000 (2023: £280,000).

The agreed contributions for future years is an average of 26% (2023: 26%) for employers and a

minimum of 5.5% to 12.5% (2023: 5.5% to 12.5%) for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute

published on GOV.UK.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions
The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

Discount rate
Salary increases
Pension increase

2024
August
% per
annum
5.0%
3.2%
2.7%

2023
August
% per
annum
5.2%
3.5%
3.0%

Sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as follows:

Discount rate reduced by 0.1% per annum
Pension increase rate increased by 0.1%

The mortality assumptions used were as follows:

Longevity at age 65 retiring today
- Men
- Women

Longevity at age 65 retiring in 20 years
- Men
- Women

At 31 At 31
August August
2024 2023
Approx Approx
Changeto Changeto
Employers Employers
Liability Liability
£'000 £'000

544 461

530 418

At 31 At 31
August August
2024 2023
years years
21.3 21.4

24.2 24.3

21.3 214

25.5 25.6




EMBRACE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Embrace Multi Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Fair value at 31 Fair value at 31

August 2024 August 2023

£'000 £'000

Equity instruments 11,956 11,304

Debt instruments 7,818 6,743

Property 1,380 1,388

Cash and other liquid assets 1,839 229

Total market value of assets 22,993 19,664
Present value of scheme liabilities:

- Funded 22,993 19,664

- Unfunded - -

Total liabilities 22,993 19,664

Deficit in the scheme -

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a surplus of £2,454,000 (2023: £450,000

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial

2024
£'000
Current service cost 770
Interest income (1,086)
Interest cost 1,066

Total amount recognised in the SoFA 750

2023

£'000
1,268
(583)
797

1,482
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29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

2024 2023
Changes in deficit during the year: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September - 1,477
Transferred in on existing Academies joining the Trust - 452
Balance at admission date - -
Movement in vear:
- Employer service cost (net of employee contributions) 770 1,268
- Employer contributions (1,052) (1,161)
- Expected return on scheme assets (1,086) (583)
- Interest cost 1,066 797
- Actuarial gains (1,297) (2,418)
- Asset ceiling adjustment 1,599 168
Deficit in the scheme at 31 August - -
Changes in the present value of defined benefit 2024 2023
obligations were as follows: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 19,664 11,493
Transferred in on existing Academies joining the Trust 1,439 9,240
Current service cost 770 1,213
Past service cost - 55
Interest cost 1,066 797
Contributions by scheme patrticipants 256 280
Benefits paid (273) (282)
Actuarial gains 71 (3,132)
Scheme liabilities at 31 August 22,993 19,664
Changes in the fair value of the share of scheme 2024 2023
assets: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 19,664 10,016
Transferred in on existing Academies joining the Trust 1,439 8,788
Expected return on scheme assets 1,086 583
Actuarial gains/(losses) 1,368 (714)
Asset ceiling adjustment (1,599) (168)
Contributions by employer 1,052 1,161
Benefits paid (273) (282)
Contributions by scheme patrticipants 256 280
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 22,993 19,664

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2025 is £1,094,000 (2024:
£1,223,000).

The fair value of the pension plan assets at 31 August 2024 is in excess of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations at that date, giving rise to a net surplus of £1,986,000 (2023: £168,000). This
surplus is recognised in the financial statements only to the extent that the academy trust can recover
this surplus, either through a reduction in future contributions or through a refund to the academy trust.
The academy trust is not able to determine that future contributions will be reduced and it is not possible
for the academy trust to receive a refund from the scheme, as the specific conditions for this have not
been met.Therefore an asset ceiling is in place such that the surplus of £1,986,000 (2023: £168,000) is
not recognised as an asset at 31 August 2024 and the net asset/liability recognised in the financial
statements is capped at £Nil.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

The Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust, in agreement with the Board of Education of the Diocese
of Leicester, occupy buildings and some open land on a rent-free licence, the terms of which have been
agreed between the Secretary of State and the Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust, and within
which is contained a termination clause on the Trustees of Embrace Multi Academy Trust by the Board of
Education giving two years notice. Full details of the arrangement are detailed in note 13. Embrace Multi
Academy Trust pays a fee to the Board of Education of the Diocese of Leicester for training courses and
a Partnership Agreement which gives the Academy Trust access to advice and support throughout the
year.

Rachel Roberts, Head Teacher of Croft Church of England Primary School, is the spouse of Evan
Roberts, a Trustee of the Trust. Rachel’s appointment was made in open competition and prior to Evan
Robert’s appointment as a Trustee. She is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no
special treatments as a result of her relationship to a Trustee. Take on procedures were in line with
normal Trust guidelines, with DBS checks and references being sought.

No other related party transactions took place during the year of account, other than certain Trustee’s
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11.

31 AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS
The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £15,985 and disbursed £17,609 from the
fund. An amount of £3,118 (2023: £4,742) is included in other creditors relating to the undistributed funds
that is repayable to the ESFA.
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32 TRANSFER OF EXISTING ACADEMIES INTO THE ACADEMY TRUST

St Peter's CE Primary School, Market Bosworth

On 1 May 2024 the assets and liabilities of St Peter's CE Primary School were transferred into Embrace
Multi Academy Trust. An income amount equal to the net assets acquired is recognised for the transfer
of an existing academy into the academy trust within donations and capital grant income.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred in.

Value reported by transferring Fair value Transfer in
academy trust adjustment recognised

£'000 £'000 £'000

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land 463 - 463

Leasehold buildings 761 - 761

Furniture and equipment 2 - 2

Computer equipment 9 - 9
Current assets

Cash in bank and in hand 106 - 106

Debtors and prepayments 34 - 34

VAT recoverable 5 - 5
Liabilities

Other tax and social security (15) - (15)

Accruals (38) - (38)

Deferred income (32) - (32)
Pensions

Pensions — pension scheme assets 1,318 - 1,318

Pensions — pension scheme liabilities (1,318) - (1,318)
Net assets 1,295 - 1,295

The fair value of the pension plan assets at 1 May 2024 was in excess of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations at that date, giving rise to a net surplus of £219,000. An asset ceiling adjustment has
been applied to the pension asset resulting in the net pension liability transferring into the Trust as £Nil

33 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no material adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheet date.



